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The frame of this 18th century meeting house was originally erected on the
geographic center of the Town of Bristol in 1772. It was not completed as
the townspeople then decided to build three meeting houses. This framework
was taken down, reassembled and completed in 1775. The new location was by
the intersection of the present 0ld Harrington Road and another road that
has now long since disappeared. In the late 1§%in it was moved across the
lot to face on the Old Harrington Ryad. At tha¥ time it was changed from a
typical 18th century meeting house to what is known colloquically as a "Back-
to" church. The balconies were removed, the box pews were removed, the thred
doors and the two rows of windows were closed up. Two doors were put in the
end facing the road and two long windows were put in either side of the
building. A narrow vestibule with a low ceiling was installed. The high
pulpit was sawed off and put on the floor against the vestibule wall. Bench
pews were made to face the pulpit and the entrance doors. The walls and a
cove ceiling were plaster. |

When it was decided to repair the building in 196§ the plaster walls and ceil-
ing were crumbling due to a leaky roof. A new roof was put on and the plastdr

removed. There were no records of what the building had been like originally
but removing the plaster proved that it was the original structure. Earlier
plater between the 12" x 12" posts showed cracks where the original windows
had been. When that plaster was removed it exposed the framework of the
original doors on three sides of the building. Now having the original frame
work it was decided to restore the building as it was in the 1770's. Plans
were not needed as all the indications of what had been were plain to be
seen.

This is an actual restoration except for the balcony which has been installed
with a flat floor and no pews in order to have a museum of and for the town.
Books, maps, pictures, clothing and other memorabilia have been collected,
all relating to Bristol. The museum is open during July and August;, .three
afternoons a week.

The Harrington Meeting House abuts the Harrington Burial Ground which is the
largest cemetery in this old section of Bristol. Many epitaphs are inscribed
on the lichened gravestones, which reveal the names of early settlers and
dates as early as 1716.

The Harrington Meeting House property consists of 1 3/8 acres in land area.
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|was at the intersection of two roads, the present 0ld Harrington Road and

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1729 David Dunbar, a Scotch-Irishman, appeared at Pemaquid, bearing a
comnission from King George II to take command there, to rebuild Fort Will-
iam Henry and to be surveyor of the King's woods. Dunbar rebuilt the fort
naming it Fort Frederick. He also laid out plans for a city which was made
up of three sections: Harrington, Walpole and Townsend, naming these sections
for influential Englishmen.

John North's map of 1751, shows Harrington the most populated section of the
western half of the Pemaquid Peninsula. When the Town of Bristol was set up
in 1765 the question arose as to where to build the meeting house. After
years of arguement, which necessarily caused ruffled tempers, it was decided
to build three meeting houses and land was donated for that purpose. In 177R
the people who wanted only one meeting house put up a framework in the geo-
graphical center of the town, Bristol Mills. A town meeting was called and
a committee of three, Alexander Nickels, Esq., Robert Sproul and William
Jones, was appointed to pull down the frame at Bristol Mills and remove it
to the land donated by William Sproul in 1768 in Harrington.

The meeting house was erected and accepted by the Town in 1775, the same year
that Walpole and Broad Cove meeting houses were accepted. (This information
is from the offiecial town records of Bristol).. At that time the building

a road long since disappeared that went across Little Falls Brook to the
Bristol Mills area. The building faced the road to Bristol Mills. In the
late eighteen forties it was decided to move the building across the old
cemetery to face what is now called Old Harrington Road.

Every one living on the two peninsulas, Christmas Cove to Pemaquid Point,
had to worship at Harrington. It was the meeting house for the lower
section of the town and it was mandatory that everyone attend service in
order to have any standing in the town. The only Town Meeting held in any
of the three meeting houses was held at Harrington in 1778. The Rev. Alex-
ander McLain, born in Scotland, came to this country in 1770 and was hired t¢
preach at all three meeting houses in the town, 1773-to 1798.
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